

LUDWIG-MAXIMILIANS-UNIVERSITÄT MÜNCHEN



Examination and Study Regulations at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München for the Master's degree program Logic and Philosophy of Science (2015)

Issued July 19, 2017

Please note that this version is solely intended as a guide for prospective students and students with little or no knowledge of German.

Only the version of the Examination and Study Regulations officially published in German is legally binding.

Based on Article 13, paragraph 1, sentence 2 in conjunction with Article 58, paragraph 1, sentence 1 and Article 61, paragraph 2, sentence 1 of the Bavarian Higher Education Act, Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München hereby enacts the following statutes

Table of Contents

I. General Information

- Section 1 Object of the Degree Program and Purpose of the Master's Examination
- Section 2 Academic Degree
- Section 3 Admission Requirements
- Section 4 Central Student Advisory Service and Academic Counseling (at Faculty Level)

II. Duration, Structure, and Course of Study

- Section 5 Start of Studies, Standard Length of Study, and Semester Hours per Week
- Section 6 ECTS Points
- Section 7 Modular Approach and Modules
- Section 8 Courses

III. Master's Examination

1. Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

- Section 9 Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations as Components of the Master's Examination
- Section 10 Evaluation of the Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations
- Section 11 Passing, Failing, and Repeating the Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations
- Section 12 Transcripts

2. Special Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

- Section 13 (not applicable)
- Section 14 Master's Thesis
- Section 15 Oral Defense

3. Forms of Examination

- Section 16 Oral Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations
- Section 17 Written Tests and Other Supervised Written Assignments
- Section 18 Further Forms of Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

4. Result of the Master's Examination

- Section 19 Passing and Failing of the Master's Examination
- Section 20 Notification and Confirmation in Case of Failure
- Section 21 Calculation of the Final Grade
- Section 22 *Master-Urkunde*, Master's Diploma, *Master-Zeugnis*, Master's Certificate, Transcript of Records, and Diploma Supplement

IV. Examination Committees and the Examination Administration

- Section 23 Examination Board and Examination Office
- Section 24 Examiners and Assessors
- Section 25 Degree Program Coordinator, Duties of Examiners
- Section 26 Student Obligations to Cooperate, Confirmation of Notifications

V. Implementation of Examinations

- Section 27 Credit Transfer of Competencies
- Section 28 Enrollment in Courses and Registration for Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations; Study-Related Measures
- Section 29 Failure to Attend, Withdrawal
- Section 30 Cheating, Violation of Regulations
- Section 31 Protective Provisions under the Maternity Leave Act, the Federal Parental Allowance and Parental Leave Act, and the Period of Family Care Act
- Section 32 Compensation for Disadvantages
- Section 33 Shortcomings in the Examination Process
- Section 34 Inspection of Examination Records, Retention Periods

VI. Final Provisions

Section 35 Entry into Force and Transitional Provisions

Annex 2: Modules, Courses, Module Examinations/Submodule Examinations

I. General Information

Section 1 Object of the Degree Program and Purpose of the Master's Examination

- (1) ¹The Master's degree program Logic and Philosophy of Science is a consecutive, strongly research-focused master's degree program. ²The recruitment of excellent young academics in the research areas of logic, philosophy of science, and the application of logical and mathematical methods in philosophy is the main purpose of the master's degree program. ³As such, it also provides a subject-focused alternative to a general consecutive Master's degree program in Philosophy. ⁴The objective of the degree program is to provide students with thorough knowledge of philosophical logic, mathematical logic, applied logic, general philosophy of science, the philosophy of special sciences and disciplines (such as physics or mathematics), and the corresponding formal methods whose application plays a fundamental role in philosophy.
- (2) ¹The Master's examination, which is to be taken during the course of study (Section 9, paragraph 1), represents the final professional qualification leading to the conclusion of the Master's degree program in Logic and Philosophy of Science. ²The Master's examination determines whether the student has an overview of the contents of the subject (and their interrelationships) and can critically assess them, has the ability to apply its relevant scientific methods and results, and has acquired the in-depth knowledge necessary for transitioning to the professional field.
- (3) ¹Key qualifications are also taught as part of the courses of this Master's degree program. ²Key qualifications include, in particular:
- 1. the ability to research, evaluate, consolidate, and structure knowledge and information,
- 2. a general overview of major fields of knowledge in the respective subject,
- 3. connected thinking,
- 4. organizational skills and transferability,
- 5. information expertise and media literacy,
- 6. learning and presentation techniques,
- 7. teaching and communication proficiency,
- 8. teamwork and communication skills, also from a gender-specific point of view,
- 9. language skills, and
- 10. computer knowledge and skills.
- (4) The courses and the corresponding module examinations and submodule examinations are carried out exclusively in English.

Section 2 Degree

The Faculty of Philosophy, Philosophy of Science, and Religious Studies awards the academic degree "Master of Arts" (M.A.) to students who successfully complete this Master's degree program.

Section 3 Admission Requirements

- (1) ¹To enroll in this Master's degree program, applicants must provide proof of a professionally qualifying university degree with at least 180 ECTS points, or an equivalent qualification from a university in Germany or abroad in the subject area of Philosophy, Logic and Philosophy of Science, Mathematics, Physics, Biology, Chemistry, Neuroscience, Engineering, Computer Science, Economics, Linguistics, Psychology, Cognitive Science, Social Science, or a related subject. ²Further admission requirements may be specified in a separate statute of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München.
- (2) Whether the admission requirements outlined in paragraph 1 are satisfied will be determined in consultation with the responsible examination board during the enrollment process.
- (3) If the requirements of paragraph 1 are not met, participation in module examinations and submodule examinations will be deemed incomplete, unless subsequent proof of meeting the requirements of paragraph 1 is explicitly permitted and submitted within the deadline.

Section 4 Central Student Advisory Service and Academic Counseling (at Faculty Level)

- (1) ¹The Central Student Advisory Service of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München provides information and advice, in particular in regard to cross-disciplinary problems. ²Before beginning their studies, students should consult it in particular when planning to change degree programs and for all questions relating to restricted admission.
- (2) ¹Academic counseling (at the level of the Faculty of Philosophy, Philosophy of Science, and Religious Studies) is conducted by the responsible academic advisor under the purview of the faculty. ²The advice specifically addresses issues related to the content and timing of study planning. ³Information on questions related to examinations or the recognition (credit transfer) of academic achievements and examination achievements is provided by the members of the Examination Board and/or the Examination Office.

II. Duration, Structure, and Course of Study

Section 5 Beginning of Studies, Standard Length of Study, and Semester Hours per Week

- (1) This Master's degree program may only be commenced in the winter semester.
- (2) ¹The standard length of study is four semesters, including the time required to complete the Master's thesis. ²In total, up to 28 semester hours per week (SHW) are required.

Section 6 ECTS Points

- (1) ¹A total of 120 points according to the European Credit Transfer System (ECTS) must be acquired as part of this Master's degree program. ²ECTS points are a measure to quantify the student's total academic workload. ³They include both the direct instruction in all courses and forms of teaching specified in Section 8, paragraph 1, sentence 2 as well as the time spent preparing and reviewing course material (in-person study and independent study) and the effort involved in preparing for examinations and for completed examination achievements. ⁴One ECTS point corresponds to an academic workload of 30 hours, meaning that the total academic workload within the standard length of study (Section 5, paragraph, 2, sentence 1) is 900 hours per semester and equivalent to 30 ECTS points.
- (2) ¹In every semester, the student must acquire the ECTS points outlined in Annex 2/column 18. ²ECTS points are only awarded for passed modules (Section 10, paragraph 4, sentence 2).

Section 7 Modular Approach and Modules

- (1) ¹The course of study in this Master's degree program is modular in structure and is regulated in a compulsory manner in Annex 2. ²The empty table cells in Annex 2 have no regulatory content.
- (2) ¹The Master's degree program consists of compulsory modules and compulsory elective modules. ²Compulsory modules must be completed without exception; the student can choose from compulsory elective modules. ³The number of compulsory elective modules selected must not exceed the required amount. ⁴A compulsory elective module is selected at the latest by taking a corresponding module examination or submodule examination; the selection is irreversible.
- (3) A module is a combination of thematically and chronologically coordinated courses as well as a module examination or one or more submodule examinations, which are assessed according to the time required for successful participation with a number of ECTS points determined in accordance with Section 6, paragraph 1.

- (4) ¹In accordance with Annex 2, a module usually spans one, at the most two semesters. ²In accordance with Annex 2/column 18, each module is worth a multiple of three ECTS points.
- (5) Annex 2 includes:
- 1. the modules,
- 2. their assignment to one or more semesters,
- 3. their requirements for admission (Annex 2/column 2),
- 4. the type of module (compulsory or compulsory elective module—Annex 2/column 3); in the case of compulsory elective modules, also the details of the selection modalities,
- 5. the module abbreviations (Annex 2/column 4),
- 6. the module names (Annex 2/column 5),
- 7. the module availability (every semester or annually) (Annex 2/column 6),
- 8. the ECTS points to be awarded after passing the module (Annex 2/ column 18).

Section 8 Courses

- (1) ¹The objectives and content of the degree program as well as key qualifications (Section 1, paragraph 3) are taught in the courses and forms of teaching specified in Annex 2/columns 8 and 9. ²The following courses and forms of teaching in particular may be specified in Annex 2/columns 8 and 9.
- 1. lectures,
- 2. exercises.
- 3. seminars,
- colloquia.
- (2) All courses are assigned to modules.
- (3) ¹The Master's degree program consists exclusively of compulsory courses. ²These must be completed without exception.
- (4) Annex 2 covers the following:
- 1. the courses,
- 2. the type of courses (Annex 2/column 3),
- 3. the course availability (every semester or annually) (Annex 2/column 6),
- 4. their assignment to a module,
- 5. their assignment to one or more semesters,
- 6. their requirements for admission (Annex 2/column 7),
- 7. the course abbreviations (Annex 2/column 4),
- 8. the names of the courses (Annex 2/column 8),
- 9. the teaching forms of the courses (Annex 2/column 9),
- 10. the semester hours per week (Annex 2/column 10),

11. the ECTS points mathematically allocated to the courses (Annex 2/column 18).

III. Master's Examination

1. Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

Section 9

Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations as Components of the Master's Examination

- (1) The Master's examination consists of module examinations and submodule examinations.
- (2) ¹In accordance with Annex 2, each module is concluded with a module examination or a certain number of submodule examinations. ²If a module examination or submodule examination is passed, the ECTS points assigned to it are recorded in the student's personal account (Section 12). ³If multiple course instructors organize a module examination without the examinations being part of a module, the regulations for submodule examinations apply accordingly.
- (3) In the module examination, in the submodule examination, or in the total of the submodule examinations for the respective module, the student should demonstrate that they have acquired the knowledge and skills taught in the courses assigned to the module in accordance with Annex 2/columns 7 to 10.
- (4) ¹Annex 2 covers the following:
- 1. the module examinations and submodule examinations,
- 2. their assignment to a module and, if applicable, a course,
- 3. their assignment to a semester (scheduled date —Annex 2/column 1),
- 4. their requirements for admission (Annex 2/column 11),
- 5. the type of examination (Annex 2/column 12),
- 6. the form of examination (Annex 2/column 13),
- 7. the duration of the examination or the scope of the examination (Annex 2/column 14),
- 8. the type of evaluation (grading or, respectively, "pass" or "fail"— Annex 2/column 15),
- 9. the grade weighting (Annex 2/column 16),
- 10. the repeatability (Annex 2/column 17).

²If Annex 2/columns 13 and 14 specify several types of examination with an associated examination duration, the course instructor shall determine which of the specified options is to be chosen and shall announce this at the beginning of the course.

Section 10 Evaluation of the Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

- (1) Module examinations and submodule examinations are evaluated or graded as "passed" or "failed."
- (2) ¹The grade awarded for a module examination or submodule examination is determined by the respective examiner. ²The following grades are to be used to evaluate the module examinations and submodule examinations:

Grade1	= "very good"	=	Outstanding achievement;
Grade 2	= "good"	=	Achievement that significantly exceeds the requirements;
Grade 3	= "satisfactory"	=	Achievement that meets average requirements;
Grade 4	= "sufficient"	=	Achievement that still meets the requirements despite its shortcomings;
Grade 5	= "insufficient"	=	Achievement that no longer meets the requirements due to significant shortcomings.

³To distinguish between the module examinations and submodule examinations, the grades may be increased or decreased by 0.3 to intermediate values; the grades 0.7; 4.3; 4.7 and 5.3 are excluded. ⁴If a module examination or submodule examination is graded by several examiners or if a module examination or submodule examination consists of multiple partial credits (Section 11, paragraph 1, sentence 3), the overall grade of the module examination or submodule examination is calculated from the arithmetic mean of the individual grades. ⁵Only the first two digits after the decimal point are taken into account. ⁶The grade designation according to sentence 4 is:

For an average up to and including 1.50	=	"very good";
For an average between 1.51 and 2.50	=	"good"
For an average between 2.51 and 3.50	=	"satisfactory"
For an average between 3.51 and 4.00	=	"sufficient"

(3) ¹The module grade is:

- 1. determined in the case of a module examination or only one graded submodule examination (Section 9, paragraph 2) from paragraph 2 and
- 2. calculated for submodule examinations (Section 9, paragraph 2) from the arithmetic mean of the individual examinations, graded in accordance with Annex 2/column 15 and weighted in accordance with Annex 2/column 16 in the submodule examinations belonging to the respective module.

²Unless otherwise specified in Annex 2/column 16, the ECTS points allocated to each submodule examination in Annex 2/column 18 shall be included in the arithmetic mean to be calculated in accordance with sentence 1, no. 2. ³Paragraph 2, sentences 5 and 6 apply accordingly.

(4) ¹If submodule examinations for more courses are successfully completed within a module than are required to pass the module, only the ECTS points required to pass the module are taken into account when calculating the module grade. ²To pass a module, students must pass the module examination assigned to the compulsory

courses or all submodule examinations in the manner specified in Annex 2.

Section 11 Passing, Failing, and Repeating the Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

- (1) ¹A module examination or submodule examination is passed if it is graded:
- 1. with "passed" or
- 2. with at least "sufficient" (4.0).

²Subject to Section 31, module examinations and submodule examinations should be passed, at the latest, by the end of the semester specified in Annex 2/column 1 (scheduled date); details provided in brackets in Annex 2/column 1 are only recommendations. ³Module examinations and submodule examinations are passed if, subject to Section 31, all required partial credits are successfully completed, at the latest, by the end of the semester following expiry of the scheduled date.

- (2) ¹If Annex 2/column 1 provides details in brackets for a module examination or submodule examination, the end of the fourth semester shall be deemed as the scheduled date. ²This module examination or submodule examination is passed if, subject to Section 31, it is successfully completed, at the latest, by the end of the fifth semester.
- (3) Module examinations and submodule examinations are also passed if the requirements of paragraphs 1 and 2 are not fulfilled within the period specified therein, but are fulfilled within the framework of paragraph 6 or a repetition permitted under these Examination and Study Regulations.
- (4) ¹Module examinations or submodule examinations are failed if they have been taken in whole or in part but were not passed. ²Module examinations or submodule examinations are definitively failed if they have been taken in whole or in part but were not passed, and there is no longer an opportunity to retake them.
- (5) ¹Subject to Section 31, module examinations or submodule examinations
- 1. are deemed to have been taken and failed if, for reasons for which the student is responsible, they are not successfully taken at the end of the semester following expiry of the scheduled date, and
- 2. are deemed to have been definitively failed if, for reasons for which the student is responsible, they have not been successfully completed by the end of the third semester following expiry of the scheduled date.

²If Annex 2/column 1 contains details provided in brackets for a module examination or submodule examination, this module examination or submodule examination is deemed, subject to Section 31,

- 1. as have been taken and failed if, for reasons for which the student is responsible, it has not been successfully completed by the end of the fifth semester, and
- 2. as have been definitively failed if, for reasons for which the student is responsible, it has not been successfully completed by the end of the seventh semester.

³In the event of reasons which justify that one of the deadlines in sentence 1 and/or 2 is exceeded, the student must report and substantiate these reasons to the Examination Office in writing as soon as they arise. ⁴A medical certificate must be submitted in the event of illness; the submission of a certificate of incapacity for work is insufficient. ⁵The Examination Office may, in individual cases or in general, require the submission of a medical certificate from a public health officer or a certificate from a physician chosen at the discretion of the Examination Office. ⁶If the reason is accepted, a new date shall be scheduled. ⁷In the case of module examinations and submodule examinations which can be split up into parts, already existing examination results are to be credited.

- (6) ¹A module examination or submodule examination that has been failed for the first time is deemed not to have been taken if it was taken in full after uninterrupted academic studies by the end of the semester specified as the scheduled date in paragraph 1, sentence 2 at the latest or by the end of the semester specified as the scheduled date in paragraph 2, sentence 1 (free examination attempt). ²In the event that a university, degree program, or subject is changed, it shall be credited to the professional studies in accordance with the Examination and Study Regulations. ³Semesters in which students were on leave of absence (Article 48, paragraph 2, sentence 1 BayHSchG) are not taken into account, nor are periods which fulfill the requirements of Section 31 or in which the respective student was unable to take part in a module examination or submodule examination for reasons for which they are not responsible. ⁴Paragraph 5, sentences 3 to 5 shall apply accordingly. ⁵Partial credits passed as part of the free examination attempt will be recognized. ⁶Sentences 1 to 5 do not apply to the Master's thesis (Section 14) and the oral defense (Section 15).
- (7) ¹For each module examination and submodule examination, with the exception of the Master's thesis (Section 14) and the oral defense (Section 15), a total of four attempts are offered, notwithstanding paragraph 6, where "three times" is specified as the repeatability allowance in Annex 2/column 17. ²The first attempt shall be offered during or immediately after the lecture period of the last semester in which the student attends courses that are the subject of the module examination or submodule examination. ³The second attempt shall be offered at an appropriate time during the current semester in accordance with sentence 2 in order to ensure that the requirements of Section 25, paragraph 2 can be met. ⁴The third attempt is offered during or immediately after the lecture period of the last semester in which the courses that the student failed are offered for the next time. ⁵Sentence 3 applies accordingly to the fourth attempt.
- (8) A failed module examination or submodule examination, with the exception of the Master's thesis (Section 14) and the oral defense (Section 15), can be repeated as often as desired, notwithstanding paragraph 6, provided that "Unlimited" is specified as the repeatability allowance in Annex 2/column 17.
- (9) Students who have failed a module examination or submodule examination must be able to repeat the course or courses assigned to this module examination or submodule examination before their last attempt in order to pass this module examination or submodule examination.
- (10) With the exception of the Master's thesis (Section 14) and the oral defense (Section 15), a module examination or submodule examination that has already been

passed may only be repeated once on the next possible scheduled date in order to improve the grade, whereby the better result counts.

(11) The grade obtained in a module examination or submodule examination and the associated ECTS points may only be counted once in this Master's degree program within the meaning of Section 6, paragraph 1, sentence 1.

Section 12 Transcripts

¹A personal account is set up by the Examination Office for students enrolled in this Master's degree program, in which

- all passed module examinations and submodule examinations (Section 11, paragraphs 1 to 3) are recorded with the grade "passed" or the grade awarded and the ECTS points allocated, and
- 2. all failed module examinations and submodule examinations (Section 11, paragraphs 4 and 5) are recorded with the grade "failed" or with the grade awarded.

²At the start of each subsequent semester, students shall receive a personal transcript as defined in sentence 1 as a notification with information on legal recourse.

2. Special Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

Section 13 (not applicable)

Section 14 Master's Thesis

- (1) The Master's thesis is a submodule examination.
- (2) The Master's thesis should demonstrate that the student is capable of independently working on a problem from their field of study using scientific methods within a specified time limit (paragraph 7).
- (3) ¹The Master's thesis is supervised by a person appointed as the first examiner in accordance with Section 24, paragraph 3, no. 3 (supervisor). ²The approval of the Chair of the Examination Board is required if the Master's thesis is to be completed at an institution outside Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München.
- (4) ¹The procedure for assigning topics will be announced by the Examination Office, as is customary, in the first two weeks after the start of the students' second-to-last semester; it is sufficient for the Examination Office to issue an announcement solely online. ²The topic of the Master's thesis and the date it is issued are put on record by the Examination Office. ³The student may express preferences for topics; the supervisor is not bound by these. ⁴The topic can only be returned once and only within two

weeks of being issued. ⁵The order pursuant to Section 28, paragraph 2, sentence 3 is deemed to have been issued; Section 28, paragraph 3 applies accordingly.

- (5) ¹The supervisor must:
- 1. assign the topic of the Master's thesis in a timely manner and
- 2. evaluate the Master's thesis in a timely manner,

so that the Examination Office receives the evaluation no later than two weeks before the student's last semester ends. ²Sentence 1, no. 2 applies accordingly for a second examiner.

- (6) ¹Students who have not been assigned a topic for a Master's thesis in a timely manner as set out in paragraph 4, sentence 1 must report immediately to the Chair of the Examination Board. ²The Chair of the Examination Board must ensure that each student is assigned a topic for a Master's thesis.
- (7) ¹The time allotted to complete the master's thesis is 20 weeks. ²20 ECTS points are awarded for the Master's thesis.
- (8) ¹Two copies of the Master's thesis must be submitted to the Examination Office by the deadline; a record of the submission date must be made. ²Upon submission, the candidate must confirm in writing that they have written the Master's thesis independently and have not used any sources or aids other than those specified. ³The Examination Board may, in general or in individual cases, additionally require that the Master's thesis be submitted in an electronic format and may specify technical requirements to be fulfilled;
- (9) ¹The Master's thesis shall be evaluated by the Master's thesis supervisor (paragraph 3, sentence 1) and by a second examiner (Section 24, paragraph 3, no. 3).
- (10) ¹The Master's thesis may be repeated once at the next possible regular date if the grade is lower than "sufficient" (4.0). ²The Master's thesis topic may, however, only be returned within the period set out in paragraph 4, sentence 4, if the student did not exercise this option upon completing their initial thesis.

Section 15 Oral Defense

¹The oral defense is a submodule examination, which is designated as such in Annex 2/column 12. ²The Master's thesis is the subject of the oral defense. ³An oral defense which has been failed may be repeated once at the next possible date. ⁴The order pursuant to Section 28, paragraph 2, sentence 3 is deemed to have been issued; ⁵A total of four ECTS points shall be awarded for an oral defense.

3. Forms of Examination

Section 16 Oral Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

- (1) ¹In oral module examinations and submodule examinations, the student should demonstrate that they are able to grasp the contents and contexts of the field of examination and are able to situate specific questions in these contents and contexts. ²Moreover, it should be determined whether the student possesses the foundational knowledge that is appropriate for the level of a Master's degree program.
- (2) The duration of the oral module examinations or submodule examinations for each examinee is regulated in Annex 2/column 14.
- (3) ¹The main subjects and results of the oral module examinations and submodule examinations must be documented in the form of a record (protocol). ²The result shall be disclosed to the student after the oral module examination or submodule examination.

Section 17 Written Tests and Other Supervised Written Assignments

- (1) ¹In the written tests and other supervised written assignments, the student should demonstrate that they can solve problems and address topics in a limited amount of time and with limited means, relying on the required foundational knowledge and by employing the standard methods of their field. ²The student may be provided with a selection of topics to choose from; the student does not have an entitlement to this, however.
- (2) The duration of written tests and other written supervised assignments is regulated in Annex 2/column 14.
- (3) ¹Written module examinations and submodule examinations may also be taken in whole or in part in a manner that requires the examinee to identify what they believe to be the correct answer from the suggested answers provided with the exam questions (multiple-choice procedure). ²The examination tasks must enable reliable examination results. ³All examinees must be given the same examination tasks. ⁴When designing or creating the examination tasks, it is necessary to determine which suggested answers are taken to be the correct ones. ⁵The examination tasks must be reviewed by the task creators before the examination result is determined to identify whether they are flawed in terms of the requirements stated in sentence 2. ⁶If this review reveals that individual examination tasks are flawed, these will not be taken into account during the determination of the examination result. ⁷The number of examination tasks for the individual module examinations and submodule examinations is reduced accordingly. 8The evaluation of the written module examination or submodule examination in accordance with paragraph 4, sentence 1 shall be based on the reduced number of examination tasks. 9The reduction in the number of examination tasks may not be to the examinee's disadvantage.

- (4) ¹Written module examinations and submodule examinations in accordance with paragraph 3, sentence 1, which consist of single-choice tasks (exactly one of a total of n suggested answers is correct—"1 out of n"), are deemed to have been passed if
- 1. the examinee answered at least 60 percent of the presented examination questions correctly, or
- 2. the examinee correctly answered at least 50 percent of the examination questions presented, and the number of examination questions answered correctly by the examinee is not more than 15 percent lower than the average examination achievement of examinees who took the examination for the first time.

²The Dean of Studies must be notified if sentence 1, no. 2 is applied. ³If the examinee correctly answered the minimum number of examination questions required to pass the examination in accordance with sentence 1, the grade shall be assigned as:

- 1. "Very good" if they answered correctly at least 75 percent,
- 2. "Good" if they answered correctly at least 50, but less than 75 percent,
- 3. "Satisfactory" if they answered correctly at least 25 but less than 50 percent,
- 4. "Sufficient" if they answered correctly none or less than 25 percent

of the additional examination questions presented.

- (5) ¹For examinations carried out in accordance with paragraph 3, sentence 1, consisting of multiple-choice tasks (an unknown number x, which is between zero and n, of a total of n suggested answers is correct—"x out of n"), paragraph 4 applies, under the proviso that instead of the ratio of the number of examination questions answered correctly to the total number of examination questions, the ratio of the total number of raw points achieved by the examinee to the maximally achievable performance shall be decisive. ²For each multiple-choice task, an evaluation score is determined which corresponds to the number of suggested answers (n) and which can be multiplied by a weighting factor for the individual multiple-choice task. ³The examinee shall receive a basic score for a multiple-choice task, which corresponds to the evaluation score if the suggested answers selected by the examinee completely agree with the suggested answers recognized as correct. ⁴One point is awarded toward the basic score for each match between a suggested answer selected or not selected by the examinee and a suggested answer recognized as correct or incorrect. ⁵If the examinee does not select a suggested answer that is recognized as correct or if the examinee does not select a suggested answer that is not recognized as correct, one point is subtracted from the basic score in each case. ⁶The basic score of a multiple-choice question cannot be less than zero points. ⁷The raw points are calculated from the basic score multiplied by the respective weighting factor of the multiple-choice task. ⁸The total achievable maximum performance is calculated from the sum of the products of all evaluation scores with the respective weighting factor of all multiple-choice tasks.
- (6) In the case of written module examinations or written submodule examinations that are only partially taken using the multiple-choice procedure, paragraphs 3 to 5 only apply to the respective part at issue.
- (7) ¹A written module examination or written submodule examination can also be taken in electronic form. ²The course instructor shall announce the type and scope of

the electronic examination at the start of the course. ³Within the scope of the course, students are given sufficient opportunity to become familiar with the electronic examination system before the examination. ⁴The provisions of data protection law must be observed.

Section 18 Other Forms of Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations

- (1) ¹A term paper must be submitted in the written form of a continuous text. ²Section 14, paragraph 8, sentence 3 applies accordingly.
- (2) An exposé is a written elaboration in preparation for a Master's thesis, which provides information regarding the research question, the envisaged main claims, key concepts and terminology, theoretical background, choice of methods, and the research literature.
- (3) Further details can be found in Annex 2.

4. Result of the Master's Examination

Section 19 Passing and Failing of the Master's Examination

- (1) The Master's examination should be passed by the end of the fourth semester.
- (2) ¹The Master's examination is passed if, by the end of the fifth semester at the latest
- all module examinations or submodule examinations of the compulsory modules and the required compulsory elective modules have been passed in a manner specified in Annex 2 and
- 2. the required number of 120 ECTS points has been earned.

²The Master's examination is also passed if the requirements of sentence 1 are not met within the period specified therein, but are met within the framework of Section 11, sentence 6 or a repetition attempt is permitted under these Examination and Study Regulations.

- (3) The Master's examination is definitively failed if the module examination or a submodule examination of one of the compulsory modules or required compulsory elective modules specified in Annex 2 has been taken but failed; Section 11, paragraph 6 no longer permits another attempt, and there is no possibility to repeat the examination.
- (4) ¹In accordance with Section 11, paragraphs 6, 8, and 9 and Section 31, the Master's examination shall be deemed

- to have been taken for the first time and failed if the deadline specified in paragraph 1 is exceeded by more than one semester for reasons for which the student is responsible, and
- to have been definitively failed if the deadline specified in paragraph 1 is exceeded by more than three semesters for reasons for which the student is responsible.

²Section 11, paragraph 5, sentences 3 to 7 apply accordingly.

Section 20 Notification and Confirmation in Case of Failure

(1) If the Master's examination

- 1. is definitively failed in accordance with Section 19, paragraph 3 or
- 2. is deemed as having been definitively failed in accordance with Section 19, paragraph 4, sentence 1, no. 2,

the Chair of the Examination Board shall issue a written decision on this matter, providing instructions on legal recourse.

(2) If the Master's examination has been failed or is deemed to have been failed, a confirmation will be issued on request and on presentation of the confirmation of disenrollment, which contains the successfully completed module examinations and submodule examinations, the allocated ECTS points and evaluations, as well as a declaration that the Master's examination has not been passed.

Section 21 Calculation of the Final Grade

¹If the Master's examination is passed in accordance with Section 19, paragraph 2, the final grade is calculated from the arithmetic mean of the module grades weighted in accordance with Annex 2/column 16; Section 10, paragraph 3, sentences 2 and 3 apply accordingly to the calculation of the final grade from the module grades. ²If more than 120 ECTS points are earned in the Master's examination, only the 120 ECTS points required to pass the Master's examination are taken into account while calculating the final grade. ³To pass the Master's examination, students must have passed

- 1. all module examinations and submodule examinations assigned to the compulsory modules in a manner specified in Annex 2 and
- 2. all module examinations and submodule examinations assigned to the compulsory elective modules in a manner specified in Annex 2.

⁴If module examinations and/or submodule examinations are taken for more compulsory elective modules than must be completed in accordance with sentence 3, no. 2, the chronologically first successfully completed one shall be deemed to be required within the meaning of sentence 2, subject to Section 7, paragraph 2, sentences 3 and 4. ⁵In the case of compulsory elective modules, the assigned module examinations or submodule examinations,

- 1. which were successfully completed in different semesters, earlier ones,
- 2. which were successfully completed in the same semester, better ones,

shall be taken into consideration. ⁶For the first instance where the compulsory elective module's module or submodule examination exceeds 120 ECTS points, only the ECTS points allocated to the module shall be included, provided the total does not exceed 120 ECTS points.

Section 22

Master-Urkunde, Master's Diploma, Master-Zeugnis, Master's Certificate, Transcript of Records, and Diploma Supplement

- (1) ¹After the Master's examination is passed, the student is provided with a *Master-Urkunde* in German and a Master's Diploma in English, which bear the date of the day on which the last module examination or submodule examination was completed. ²These certify the academic degree awarded in accordance with Section 2.
- (2) ¹Along with receiving the *Master-Urkunde* and the Master's Diploma, the student is provided with the *Master-Zeugnis* in German and the Master's Certificate in English, bearing the date of the *Master-Urkunde* and the Master's Diploma. ²The topic of the Master's thesis and the grade awarded to it as well as the final grade must be included in the *Master-Zeugnis* and Master's Certificate.
- (3) ¹The Examination Office also issues a Transcript of Records in German, which contains all completed modules and the module examinations and submodule examinations assigned to them, including the ECTS points and evaluations awarded for them. ²Module examinations and submodule examinations that are not included in the Master's examination in accordance with Sections 19 and 21 are noted for informational purposes.
- (4) The Examination Office also issues a Diploma Supplement in English with information about the type and level of the Master's degree, the status of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München, and detailed information about the study program of the Master's degree program.
- (5) ¹The *Master-Urkunde* and the Master's Diploma are signed by the Dean and the Chair of the Examination Board; the *Master-Zeugnis* and the Master's Certificate are signed by the Chair of the Examination Board; the Transcript of Records and the Diploma Supplement are signed by the Head of the Examination Office. ²The *Master-Urkunde*, Master's Diploma, *Master-Zeugnis*, Master's Certificate, Transcript of Records, and Diploma Supplement bear the seal of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München.
- (6) ¹If, after a *Master-Urkunde*, Master's Diploma, *Master-Zeugnis*, Master's Certificate, Transcript of Records, Diploma Supplement, another certificate, another document, or transcript has been issued and delivered, it becomes evident that unauthorized aids were used or that cheating occurred, the Examination Board may subsequently rectify the relevant grades and declare the examination as failed, either in whole or in part. ²The incorrect *Master-Urkunde*, the incorrect Master's Diploma, the incorrect *Master-Zeugnis*, the incorrect Master's Certificate, the incorrect Transcript

of Records, the incorrect Diploma Supplement, any other incorrect certificate, any other incorrect document, or an incorrect transcript must be withdrawn. ³If the requirements are met, a correct *Master-Urkunde*, a correct Master's Diploma, a correct *Master-Zeugnis*, a correct Master's Certificate, a correct Transcript of Records, a correct Diploma Supplement, a correct other certificate, a correct other document, or a correct final transcript must be issued. ⁴A decision of this kind is not possible after five years have passed from the date of the *Master-Zeugnis* and the Master's Certificate. ⁵An opportunity to comment must be provided before a decision is made in accordance with sentence 1 and/or sentence 2. ⁶Decisions that are detrimental to the student must be communicated to student in writing without delay, including the reasons behind the decision and details regarding the legal recourse.

IV. Examination Committees and the Examination Administration

Section 23 Examination Board and Examination Office

- (1) ¹The Examination Board consists of three members who must be authorized to conduct examinations in accordance with Article 62, paragraph 1, sentence 2 of the Bavarian Higher Education Act (BayHSchG) in conjunction with the current version of the University Examiner Regulation (HSchPrüferV) as amended. ²The members of the Examination Board are appointed by the Faculty Council. ³Members of the Examination Board Committee serve a term of three years. ⁴Reappointment is permissible.
- (2) ¹The members are to appoint a Chair and Deputy Chair from among themselves. ²The Chair and Deputy Chair serve a term of three years. ³Reappointment is permissible.
- (3) ¹The Examination Board has a quorum when all members have been invited in writing or electronic form at least one week before the meeting, stating the agenda, and the majority of members attend and are entitled to vote. ²It passes resolutions at meetings by a majority of the votes cast; abstentions, secret ballots, and the transfer of voting rights are not permitted. ³If a tie occurs, the Chair of the Examination Board shall have the casting vote. ⁴The exclusion of a member of the Examination Board from deliberation and voting in the Examination Board and from examination activities is determined in accordance with Article 41, paragraph 2 BayHSchG.
- (4) ¹The Examination Board is responsible for organizing examinations, appointing examiners and assessors (Section 24, paragraph 3), and making decisions in examination-related matters. ²The Examination Office assists the Examination Board with the performance of its duties. ³The Examination Board ensures that the provisions of these Examination and Study Regulations are complied with. ⁴It provides regular reports to the Dean of Studies on the development of examinations and study periods and makes suggestions for the reform and appropriate revision of these Examination and Study Regulations.
- (5) ¹The Examination Board may delegate the completion of certain tasks to the Chair of the Examination Board, their Deputy Chair or the Examination Office. This delegation of tasks is subject to revocation. ²Furthermore, the Chair of the Examination Board is also authorized, in place of the Examination Board, to make decisions

that cannot be postponed; the Chair of the Examination Board must notify the Examination Board of this without delay.

- (6) The Examination Board shall adopt its own rules of procedure.
- (7) The members of the Examination Board are authorized to attend examinations.

Section 24 Examiners and Assessors

- (1) ¹In the case of module examinations and submodule examinations that only apply to one course and with the exception of the Master's thesis, the examiner is, in accordance with paragraph 4, sentence 1, the course instructor responsible for the course. ²In the case of module examinations and submodule examinations that concern several courses taught by different course instructors, the Examination Board shall designate a course instructor as the examiner, either in general or on a case-by-case basis. ³Sentence 2 applies accordingly if the course instructor is not authorized to conduct examinations (paragraph 4, sentence 1).
- (2) Written module examinations and submodule examinations that should be evaluated as "failed" must be assessed by two examiners; oral module examinations and submodule examinations must be evaluated by at least one examiner and one expert assessor (paragraph 3, no. 1).
- (3) The Examination Board shall make the following appointments, either in general or on a case-by-case basis:
- 1. the assessors for oral module examinations and submodule examinations.
- 2. a second examiner for module examinations and submodule examinations that are to be evaluated as "failed",
- 3. an examiner (Section 14, paragraph 3) and a second examiner (Section 14, paragraph 9) for the Master's thesis, and
- 4. one or more examiners for the oral defense (Section 15).
- (4) ¹Only persons authorized to conduct examinations in accordance with Article 62, paragraph 1, sentence 2 BayHSchG in conjunction with HSchPrüferV may be examiners. ²Assessors must be qualified persons who have successfully completed at least a Master's degree program or have a comparable qualification.
- (5) The individual examiners and supervisors are responsible for conducting the examination procedure.

Section 25 Degree Program Coordinator, Duties of Examiners

(1) ¹The Degree Program Coordinator for this Master's degree program is appointed by the faculty. ²As long as no appointment has been made, the Dean of Studies shall perform the duties. ³The Degree Program Coordinator carries out the following duties

in collaboration with the Examination Board, the Examination Office, and the Central University Administration Office.

- 1. When establishing and making possible changes to this Master's degree program:
 - a) the review of the modular structure of these Examination and Study Regulations from the disciplinary's perspective,
 - b) the preparation of the necessary information about this Master's degree program for students and examiners,
- 2 subsequently: the coordination and organization of the courses, module examinations, and submodule examinations, in particular
 - a) the convening of an annual curriculum conference,
 - b) the assignment of the specific courses to the abstract courses outlined in these Examination and Study Regulations,
 - c) the announcement of courses in the university catalog,
 - d) the entry of courses into the electronic data processing system,
 - e) the scheduling and room allocation of courses, module examinations, and submodule examinations, and
 - f) the entry of the evaluation into the electronic data processing system.
- (2) ¹Using the standardized form specified by the Examination Office, the examiners (Section 24) must immediately notify the Degree Program Coordinator about the students who took part in their course and their respective results. ²The Degree Program Coordinator must review these notifications without delay and immediately share them with the Examination Office in the standardized form specified by the Examination Office. ³The notifications must be submitted to the Examination Office in a timely manner and in the correct form; the Examination Office will announce at the latest at the beginning of each semester when the notifications must be submitted to the Degree Program Coordinator and/or the Examination Office. ⁴If the requirements of sentence 3 are not met, the courses in question will not be reflected in the current transcripts (Section 12). ⁵The examiner must submit these notifications to the Examination Office as soon as possible and send individual confirmations to all affected students, along with a notice containing information on legal recourse.

Section 26 Student Obligations to Cooperate, Confirmation of Notifications

¹Using the required form, the student must, at their own expense, confirm receipt of information, notifications, and administrative acts which have been delivered to them by the Examination Board or Examination Office or which they have received in electronic form (confirmation of receipt). ²Confirmation of receipt can be completed free of charge on the campus of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München. ³During the first two weeks of the lecture period, the Examination Office will announce, as is customary, when information, notifications, and administrative acts will be posted or sent out or can be retrieved or accessed electronically. ⁴The provision of such information, notifications, and administrative acts shall be subject to general legal regulations. ⁵Students who do not take note of posted information, notifications, and administrative acts, who do not retrieve or collect them electronically, and who do not accept sent

items or do not collect shipments by a shipping company shall be deemed to have received them and been notified of such information, notifications, and administrative acts one month after they are posted, made available for electronic access, collection, or shipping. ⁶If the Examination Office sends the information, notifications, and administrative acts again because the student does not send the confirmation of receipt provided for in sentence 1 and/or does not take note of posted information, notifications, and administrative acts, does not electronically access or retrieve information, and does not accept information that has been sent or does not collect information delivered by a shipping company, the student shall bear the costs incurred for renewed transmission. ⁷The Examination Office is not required to make a renewed attempt at transmission.

V. Implementation of Examinations

Section 27 Credit Transfer of Competencies

- (1) ¹Study periods, academic achievements, and examination achievements completed or obtained in another degree program at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München or in degree programs at other state or state-recognized institutions of higher education in the Federal Republic of Germany, through successful participation in a distance learning unit as part of a degree program at a state or state-recognized institution of higher education in the Federal Republic of Germany, or in degree programs at foreign institutions of higher education are to be credited, unless there exist significant differences with regard to the competencies acquired (learning outcomes). ²The same applies to periods of study, academic achievements, and examination achievements completed or obtained at a state or state-recognized institution of higher education in Bavaria as part of other studies pursuant to Article 56, paragraph 6, no. 1 and 2 BayHSchG, in special programs offered in accordance with Article 47, paragraph 3, sentence 1 BayHSchG, or at the Virtual University of Bavaria (vhb).
- (2) ¹Competencies acquired as part of other further education studies in accordance with Article 56, paragraph 6, no. 3 BayHSchG or outside the higher education sector may be credited if they are equivalent. ²Competencies acquired outside the higher education sector may replace no more than half of the competencies to be demonstrated.
- (3) ¹If academic achievements or examination achievements are credited, the grades—insofar as the grading systems are equivalent—shall be adopted and used for the calculation of grades in accordance with these Examination and Study Regulations. ²The grades transferred shall be indicated as such and the transfer noted in the certificate. ³If the grading systems are not equivalent, the Chair of the Examination Board shall determine a grade for the academic achievements and examination achievements credited based on the grading levels pursuant to Section 10, paragraph 2, and shall do so in accordance with sentences 1 and 2. ⁴Sentences 1 to 3 shall apply accordingly for the allocation of ECTS points.
- (4) ¹Students must submit the documents required for the credit transfer procedure to the Examination Board no later than by the end of the first semester following

enrollment in this Master's degree program at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München, provided periods of study, academic or examination achievements are to be credited which were already completed prior to enrollment in the Master's degree program at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München. ²For the credit transfer of periods of study, academic achievements, and examination achievements completed after the completion of enrollment in this Master's degree program at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München, the documents must be submitted in the respective semester following their acquisition. ³Proof of periods of study to be credited are normally furnished by submitting the record of study from the university at which the period of study was completed. ⁴For the credit transfer of academic achievements and examination achievements, a confirmation from the respective university at which the academic achievements and examination achievements were obtained is to be submitted. This confirmation must contain the following information:

- 1. which individual examinations (oral and/or written) were to be taken in which examination subjects as part of the overall examination,
- 2. which examinations were actually taken,
- 3. an evaluation of the academic achievements and examination achievements and where applicable, the subject grade,
- 4. the grading system on which the evaluation is based,
- 5. in the case of degree programs with credit point systems, the number of credit points awarded for the individual courses in which the academic achievements and examination achievements to be credited were obtained, as well as the number of credit points required for successful completion of the degree program,
- 6. the scope of the individual courses in which the academic achievements and examination achievements to be credited were obtained, specified as the number of semester hours per week, and
- 7. whether an overall examination has not been passed based on the existing results, or is deemed to have been failed as a result of other circumstances.

⁵Suitable evidence (certificates, documentation, etc.) will need to be submitted for the credit transfer of competencies acquired outside the higher education sector.

- (5) Submission of a certified German translation can be required for certificates and documents which were not issued in German.
- (6) In cases of doubt, the Examination Board shall decide on the recognition of periods of study, academic achievements, and examination achievements after considering the opinion of the relevant subject representative.

Section 28

Enrollment in Courses and Registration for Module Examinations and Submodule Examinations; Study-Related Measures

(1) ¹For individual or all courses, the Examination Board may require enrollment for participation in the course and may set the form and deadline for enrollment. ²Students who have not enrolled in a course for which enrollment is required in accordance with sentence 1, or who have not enrolled in due form and/or time, are not entitled to participate in this course. ³Courses for which enrollment is required, and which require a form and deadline for enrollment, will be announced by the Examination

Office as is customary, in the first two weeks after the semester has started; it is sufficient for the Examination Office to issue an announcement solely online.

- (2) ¹Registration is required for all module examinations and submodule examinations; the Examination Board defines the form and deadline for registration. ²Students who have not registered for a module examination or submodule examination or who have not registered in due form and/or time are not entitled to participate in this module examination or submodule examination. ³The Examination Board may also in general order that a module examination or submodule examination for which the student has registered is deemed to have been failed if the student does not take the module examination or submodule examination for reasons for which they are responsible or withdraws from the module examination or submodule examination taken. ⁴Paragraph 1, sentence 3 shall apply accordingly to the respective registration's form and deadline.
- (3) ¹A written record shall be created for the announcements in accordance with paragraph 1, sentence 3, and paragraph 2, sentence 4, detailing, in particular, the content of the decisions and the time, method, and location of their announcement. ²The Chair of the Examination Board shall sign the record which will be retained by the Examination Office for at least five years.
- (4) Study-related measures are defined in a special statute of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München.

Section 29 Failure to Attend, Withdrawal

- (1) A module examination or submodule examination shall be deemed to have been "failed" or graded "insufficient" (5.0) if the student
- 1. misses an examination date for a module examination or submodule examination for which they registered and for which the Examination Board issued an order in accordance with Section 28, paragraph 2, sentence 3, due to a reason for which they are responsible or
- 2. withdraws from a module examination or submodule examination that they took for a reason for which they are responsible, or
- 3. has not completed a written module examination or submodule examination within the specified processing time for a reason for which they are responsible.
- (2) ¹The reason for withdrawing or failing to attend the examination must be submitted to the Examination Office immediately in writing and substantiated. ²Section 11, paragraph 5, sentences 4 to 7 apply accordingly.

Section 30 Cheating, Violation of Regulations

(1) If the student attempts to influence the result of a module examination or submodule examination by cheating or using unauthorized aids to their own or a third party's advantage, the module examination or submodule examination in question will be graded as "failed" or "insufficient" (5.0); in the case of written module examinations

and submodule examinations, possession of unauthorized aids during and after the issue of the examination documents alone is deemed to be an attempt.

- (2) A student who disrupts the examination's orderly progress may be excluded from continuing with the module examination or submodule examination by the respective examiner or supervisor; in this case, the module examination or submodule examination will be graded as "failed" or "insufficient" (5.0).
- (3) In serious or repeated instances as outlined in paragraph 1 and/or paragraph 2, the Examination Board may exclude the student from taking individual or all further module examinations and submodule examinations; in the latter case, the student will be disenrolled in accordance with Article 49, paragraph 2, no. 3 BayHSchG.
- (4) Section 22, paragraph 6, sentences 5 and 6 apply accordingly.

Section 31

Protective Provisions under the Maternity Leave Act, the Federal Parental Allowance and Parental Leave Act, and the Period of Family Care Act

- (1) The assertion of the protective provisions in accordance with Sections 3, 4, 6, and 8 of the Act on the Protection of Mothers at Work (Mutterschutzgesetz [MuSchG]) in the version published on June 20, 2002 (BGBI I p. 2,318) in the respective prevailing version, according to the deadlines of the Federal Parental Allowance and Parental Leave Act (Bundeselterngeld- und Elternzeitgesetz [BEEG]) in the version published on January 27, 2015 (BGBI I p. 33), in the respective prevailing version concerning parental leave as well as for the care of a close relative as defined in Section 7, paragraph 3 of the Period of Family Care Act (Pflegezeitgesetz [PflegeZG]) dated May 28, 2008 (BGBI I pp. 874, 896), in the respective prevailing version, who is in need of care as laid out in Sections 14 and 15 of the Eleventh Book of the Social Code (SGB XI) dated May 26, 1994 (BGBI I pp. 1014, 1015) in the respective prevailing version, shall be made possible.
- (2) ¹The Examination Board determines which courses are associated with above-average risks for pregnant or breastfeeding students and combines this with a corresponding warning. ²The Examination Board prohibits the participation of pregnant or breastfeeding students in courses that are associated with significantly higher than average risks for the mother and/or child. ³The Examination Board shall determine whether and how pregnant or breastfeeding students can otherwise acquire the knowledge and skills taught in courses in which they are not permitted to participate. ⁴A legal entitlement to the provision of special courses for pregnant or breastfeeding students does not exist. ⁵The courses, warnings, and prohibitions in accordance with sentences 1 and 2 as well as the possibility of acquiring the knowledge and skills elsewhere in accordance with sentence 3 shall be announced by the Examination Office, as is customary; it is sufficient for the Examination Office to issue an announcement solely online.

Section 32 Compensation for Disadvantages

- (1) ¹Severely disabled persons and persons with equal status (Section 2, paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Social Code—Ninth Book—SGB IX in the respective prevailing version) shall, upon request, be granted an extension in the examination duration of up to one quarter of the normal examination period by the Examination Board, depending on the severity of the proven examination disability. ²In cases of particularly severe exam-related disabilities, the duration of the examination may be extended by up to one-half of the normal examination duration upon request. ³In addition to, or as an alternative to an extension of the examination duration, other appropriate compensation may be arranged.
- (2)¹Other examinees who are significantly impaired from taking the module examinations or submodule examinations due to an identified, not merely temporary physical disability or chronic illness may be granted compensation for disadvantages in accordance with section 1. ²In the case of temporary disabilities, other suitable measures may be taken.
- (3) ¹Applications for compensation for disadvantages must be submitted no later than when registering for a module examination or submodule examination, or no later than one month before the respective module examination or submodule examination. ²The disability must be substantiated. ³The Examination Board may require that evidence for this be provided in the form of a medical certificate. ⁴Section 11, paragraph 5, sentences 4 and 5 apply accordingly.

Section 33 Shortcomings in the Examination Process

- (1) If it becomes apparent that an examination procedure had substantial deficiencies that may have influenced the examination result, the entire module examination or submodule examination or an individual part thereof shall be repeated by certain or all participants at the request of a participant or at the university's own discretion.
- (2) ¹Any alleged deficiencies in the examination procedure or an inability to take the examination that occurred before or during the module examination or submodule examination must be immediately asserted and substantiated to the supervisor, the examiner, the Examination Office, or the Chair of the Examination Board, but at the latest before the examination result is announced. ²Any orally articulated and justified/validated reasons within the sense of sentence 1 must also be submitted immediately in writing to the Examination Office or to the Chair of the Examination Board. ³Validation and prima facie evidence are not required if more than one month has passed since the date of the module or submodule examination. ⁴Section 11, paragraph 5, sentences 3 to 7 apply accordingly.

Section 34 Inspection of Examination Records, Retention Periods

¹After the module examination or submodule examination is completed, within the period designated by the Examination Office as is customary, the student shall be granted access to the examination and the related reports and records within a reasonable period of time upon making the request to the Examination Office; it is sufficient for the Examination Office to announce the period solely online. ²The Examination Office may announce that, by way of derogation from sentence 1, such access will be granted at another office of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München in accordance with sentence 1; it is sufficient for the Examination Office to issue an announcement about the other office solely online. ³The full examination records shall be archived for a minimum of five years. ⁴The main record, which consists of copies of the *Master-Urkunde*, the Master's Diploma, the *Master-Zeugnis*, the Master's Certificate, and the Transcript of Records, shall be kept indefinitely. ⁵The records may be kept in electronic form.

VI. Final Provisions

Section 35 Entry into Force and Transitional Provisions

- (1) These statutes shall enter into force with effect from October 1, 2015.
- (2) Students enrolled in the Master's degree program in Logic and Philosophy of Science in winter semester 2015/16 or later will study on the basis of the Examination and Study Regulations of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München for the Master's degree program in Logic and Philosophy of Science (2015) dated July 19, 2017
- (3) Students who are already enrolled in the Master's degree program in Logic and Philosophy of Science in summer semester 2015 will continue their studies on the basis of the current version of the statutes under which they have been studying to date.

Issued based on the decision of the Board of University Representatives of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München on September 28, 2016 and the approval of the

President of Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München on July 19, 2017, no. I.3-452.10:7.

Munich, July 19, 2017

Signed by

Prof. Dr. Bernd Huber President

The statutes were filed on July 19, 2017 at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München. The filing was announced on July 19, 2017 via a notice posted at Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München. The date of publication is therefore July 19, 2017.

				Module			Courses				M	odule examination	ns / Suhmodule e	vaminations			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*	Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	SHW	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability	ECTS points*
		•	ree progi	ram: Logic and Philos	ophy	of Science (N	laster of Arts, M.A.)										120
1st (1st)	Semester None	Р	P 1	Master Forum I	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	6
		Р	P 1.1		ws	None	Central Topics in Logic and Philosophy of Science 1	Colloquium	2								(6)
(1st)	None	Р	P 2	Formal Methods I	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	6
		Р	P 2.1		ws	None	Methods in Mathematical Philosophy 1	Lecture	2								(4)
		Р	P 2.2		ws	None	Practice Session in Mathematical Philosophy 1	Exercise course	1								(2)
					A to		Isory elective modules must b ompulsory elective modules a						l.				
(1st)	None	WP	WP 1	Logic I	ws					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 1.1		WS	None	Master Course Logic 1	Seminar	2								(9)
(1st)	None	WP	WP 2	Logic II	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 2.1		ws	None	Master Course Logic 2	Seminar	2	_							(9)
(1st)	None	WP	WP 3	General Philosophy of Science I	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 3.1		ws	None	Master Course General Philosophy of Science 1	Seminar	2								(9)

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table

				Module			Courses				M	odule examination	s / Submodule e	xaminations			7
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*	Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	SHW	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability	ECTS points*
(1st)	None	WP	WP 4	General Philosophy of Science II	ws					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 4.1		WS	None	Master Course General Philosophy of Science 2	Seminar	2								(9)
(1st)	None	WP	WP 5	Philosophy of the Special Sciences I	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 5.1		WS	None	Master Course Philosophy of the Special Sciences 1	Seminar	2								(9)
(1st)	None	WP	WP 6	Philosophy of the Special Sciences II	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
Ond	Semeste	Р	WP 6.1		WS	None	Master Course Philosophy of the Special Sciences 2	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	Р	Р3	Master Forum II	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	6
		Р	P 3.1		ss	None	Central Topics in Logic and Philosophy of Science 2	Colloquium	2								(6)
(2nd)	None	Р	P 4	Formal Methods II	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	6
		Р	P 4.1		ss	None	Methods in Mathematical Philosophy 2	Lecture	2								(4)
		Р	P 4.2		SS	None	Practice Session in Mathematical Philosophy 2	Exercise course	1								(2)

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table

				Module			Courses				M	odule examination	s / Submodule e	vaminations			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*	Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	MHS	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability ::	ECTS points*
					A to		Isory elective modules must b ompulsory elective modules at										
(2nd	None	WP	WP 7	Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics I	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 7.1		SS	None	Master Course Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics 1	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 8	Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics II	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 8.1		SS	None	Master Course Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics 2	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 9	Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics III	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 9.1		SS	None	Master Course Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics 3	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 10	Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics IV	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 10.1		SS	None	Master Course Philosophy of Logic and Mathematics 4	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 11	Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology I	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 11.1		SS	None	Master Course Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology 1	Seminar	2								(9)

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table

				Module			Courses				Mo	dule examination	s / Submodule e	xaminations			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*	Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	SHW	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability	ECTS points*
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 12	Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology II	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 12.1		SS	None	Master Course Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology 2	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 13	Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology III	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 13.1		SS	None	Master Course Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology 3	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 14	Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology IV	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 14.1		SS	None	Master Course Rational Choice and Formal Epistemology 4	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 15	Themes in Analytic Philosophy I	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 15.1		SS	None	Master Course Themes in Analytic Philosophy 1	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 16	Themes in Analytic Philosophy II	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 16.1		SS	None	Master Course Themes in Analytic Philosophy 2	Seminar	2								(9)

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table

				Module			Courses				Mo	odule examination	s / Submodule e	xaminations			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*	Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	SHW	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability	ECTS points*
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 17	Themes in Analytic Philosophy III	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 17.1		SS	None	Master Course Themes in Analytic Philosophy 3	Seminar	2								(9)
(2nd)	None	WP	WP 18	Themes in Analytic Philosophy IV	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 18.1		SS	None	Master Course Themes in Analytic Philosophy 4	Seminar	2								(9)
(3rd)	Semester None	Р	P 5	Master Forum III	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	6
		Р	P 5.1		ws	None	Central Topics in Logic and Philosophy of Science 3	Colloquium	2								(6)
(3rd)	None	Р	P 6	Preparation of the Master Thesis	WS					None	ME	Exposé	approx. 15,000 characters	Grading		Unlimited	6
		Р	P 6.1		ws	None	Current Literature and Research Questions	Exercise course	2								(6)
					A to		lsory elective modules must b ompulsory elective modules a										
(3rd)	None	WP	WP 19	Logic III	ws					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 19.1		ws	None	Master Course Logic 3	Seminar	2								(9)

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table

				Module			Courses				Mo	odule examination	s / Submodule e	xaminations			I
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*	Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	SHW	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability	ECTS points*
(3rd)	None	WP	WP 20	Logic IV	ws					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 20.1		ws	None	Master Course Logic 4	Seminar	2								(9)
(3rd)	None	WP	WP 21	General Philosophy of Science III	ws					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 21.1		ws	None	Master Course General Philosophy of Science 3	Seminar	2								(9)
(3rd)	None	WP	WP 22	General Philosophy of Science IV	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 22.1		WS	None	Master Course General Philosophy of Science 4	Seminar	2								(9)
(3rd)	None	WP	WP 23	Philosophy of the Special Sciences III	WS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
	_	Р	WP 23.1		WS	None	Master Course Philosophy of the Special Sciences 3	Seminar	2								(9)
(3rd)	None	WP	WP 24	Philosophy of the Special Sciences IV	ws					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	9
		Р	WP 24.1		ws	None	Master Course Philosophy of the Special Sciences 4	Seminar	2								(9)

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table

					Module			Courses				Me	odule examination	ns / Submodule e	xaminations			
1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
Semester*		Admission requirement	Compulsory (P) / Compulsory	Module or course abbreviation	Name of module	provided in the	Admission requirement	Name of the course	Form of instruction	MHS	Admission requirement	Examination type*	Form of examination	Duration and scope of examination	Grading or passed/failed	Grade weighting	Repeatability	ECTS points*
4t	h Se	emester																
(41	th)	None	Р	P 7	Master Forum IV	SS					None	ME	Term paper or Written test	approx. 40,000 characters or 90–180 minutes	Grading		three times	6
			Р	P 7.1		SS	None	Central Topics in Logic and Philosophy of Science 4	Colloquium	2								(6)
		None	Р	P 8	Final Module	SS												24
(41	th)		Р	P 8.1		ss	None	Master's Thesis	Master's thesis		None	SME, MAT	Master's thesis	20 weeks, approx. 150,000 to max. 300,000 characters	Grading		once, next date	(20)
(41	th)		Р	P 8.2		SS	None	Oral defense	Oral defense		None	SME, OD	Oral defense	45 minutes	Grading		once, next date	(4)

Explanations

Re Column 1:

Numbers in brackets are recommendations; numbers not in brackets specify a regular term (Section 11).

Re Column 12:

ME = Module examination / SME = Submodule examination / MAT = Master's thesis / OD = Oral defense

Re Column 18:

ECTS points not in brackets are awarded upon passing the corresponding module (Section 10, paragraph 4, sentence 2). ECTS points in brackets are only used for calculation purposes.

^{*)} Explanations to columns 1, 12, and 18 at the end of the table